

The logo features a stylized graphic of a red, white, and blue swoosh above the text.

OXONIAN
CYCLING CLUB

A wide, horizontal swoosh with a red top edge and a white bottom edge, spanning the width of the page.A dark blue swoosh that tapers at both ends, positioned below the red and white swoosh.

MEMBERS HANDBOOK 2024

OXONIAN CYCLING CLUB

Founded 1927

Affiliated to:
British Cycling
Wessex Cyclo-Cross League

Contents

Foreword	4
Officers	5-6
Club Website	7
Constitution	8-9
Open and club races and performances	10-14
Club trophies	15-18
Award winners 2022	19-20
Time trial records, solo	21-24
Time trial records, tandem	25
Time trial team records	26
Veteran age records	27
Veteran records, by VTTA standards	28
Best all rounder competitions	29-31
Time trial courses	32
Events programme 2023	33
Club rides	34
Code of conduct	35
Insurance and personal risk	35
Cyclo-cross	35-36
Road racing	36
Club kit	36
Notes	37

FOREWORD

A warm welcome to another year of Oxonian membership, and an especially warm welcome to new members, and those who joined in 2023 (I hope you are continuing your membership!).

We look forward to a great season this year and plenty of social rides. This year we would like to see more of our members on social rides and at events.

Completed events where Trophies can be awarded the results are:

Tom Pearce Memorial, awarded to the Open 10 TT winners, was won by Tony Turner (Micky Cranks) and Jo Wilkie (Cheltenham & County). Freddy Green Memorial The Open 25 TT trophy was won by Alex Doherty (DRAG2ZERO) and Ann Warren (Oxonian). Ravens Bowl The Open 50 was won by Dan Blake (ZeroBC) and Corrine Clarke (Swindon Wheelers). Broadribb Cup The Club 25 mile champions were Alex Donger and Ann Warren. The Bayliss Cup Handicap 25 was won by Paul Thornton. Falck Shield The Club 50 mile champions were again Alex Donger and Ann Warren. K.B. May Cup The Hill climb cup was won by Sam Stapleton. Burnceaster Cup Evening 10 points was won by Phil Strongman. Burdenstone Cup Short distance BAR was won by James Hunt. Steve Hawke's Trophy Open events completed was won by James Hunt.

The **Rowell Cup** for the most recorded Strava miles is taken by James Hunt.

All that remains is for me to acknowledge and thank the committee who worked tirelessly to run the TT programme in 2023, and we look forward to see you over the race season.

Committee, January 2024

OFFICERS

PRESIDENT

Mick Bowen – 01865 761210

CHAIR

VICE-PRESIDENTS

Barry Fairbrother, Mick Fountain, Marion Fountain, Linda Free,
Gordon Hinder, Dennis Quantrill

CHAIRMAN

Vacant

CLUB SECRETARY

Paul Warren – 07977 144893
paul.warren@oxoniancc.co.uk

TREASURER

Steve Smith-01865 436251
steve.smith@oxoniancc.co.uk

AUDITOR

Mick Shipway

PUBLICITY OFFICER

Steve Legge
steve.legge@oxoniancc.co.uk

CLUB CLOTHING

Stephen Smith

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Jeff King, Dennis McSweeney, Matthew Robson, Patrick Smith,
Rob Suriano, Phil Strongman, Sally Thompson, Rob Suriano

TIME TRIALS SECRETARY

Vacant

TIMEKEEPERS

Geoff Booker, Mick Bowen, Martin Howard, Pete Saunders,
John Jenkins, Pete Oliver, Jerry Tillson, Patrick Smith

CLUB COACHES

Rob Suriano

BRITISH CYCLING SECRETARY

Vacant

CYCLO-CROSS SECRETARY

Vacant

MEMBERSHIP SECRETARY

Paul Warren

SOCIAL SECRETARY

Vacant

WELFARE OFFICER

Ingrid Anson 01993 778304

EVENT ORGANISERS 2023

25 MILES OPEN

Patrick Smith 07496 177160
patrick.smith@oxoniancc.co.uk

10 MILES OPEN

Matt Robson 07940 807186

50 MILES OPEN

Rob Suriano
rob.suriano@oxoniancc.co.uk

CLUB WEBSITE

www.oxoniancc.co.uk

Webmaster steve.legge@oxoniancc.co.uk

For the full results of all Oxonian events,
Club time trial league table positions,
Club records, members' ads, photos,
TT course details and much more.

CLUB CLOTHING

Available from Steve Smith
Phone 01865 436251/07780337637
e-mail: steve.smith@oxoniancc.co.uk

OXONIAN CC CONSTITUTION

1. The Club shall be called the OXONIAN CYCLING CLUB (hereinafter termed 'the Club'). The objective of the Club shall be to provide the facilities and support to allow any member of the public to participate in the sport of amateur cycling. Membership of the Club shall be open to anyone irrespective of age, sex, nationality, ethnic origin, disability, sexual orientation, religion or beliefs. Club colours shall be yellow, red, dark blue, and light blue. The Club strip should be worn at all Open events

2. Applications for membership should be sent to the Membership Secretary, on official forms together with the appropriate subscription. The Club Committee may refuse membership or remove it only for good cause such as conduct or character likely to bring the Club or Sport into disrepute. Appeal against refusal or removal may be made to the committee. On acceptance each new member shall be notified of the fact and issued with proof of membership.

First claim members having resigned membership may apply for reinstatement as second claim or social members by the procedure stated above.

3. Membership

a) The Annual Subscription shall be:

Seniors/Veterans (1st/2nd claim)	£15	
Juniors (16/18)	£5	*free
Juveniles (under 16)	£5	*free

* Family rate, where one household member at full Senior/Veteran rate

Students whose 1st claim Club is Oxford University CC or Brookes University CC £5

Renewal of subscriptions to maintain membership becomes due and payable on **1st January each year. After the 1st March constitutes a break in membership and will treated as a new application.**

b) Application after the 30th September covers membership to 31st December of the following year.

c) Second claim and Social members may upgrade to 1st claim at any time during the year, informing the committee by letter that they have resigned their previous club's 1st claim status, and paying the difference in fees, if any. A 2nd claim member is entitled to all the privileges of the club, including enter and ride any event run by the club except the following:

1/ Win a trophy or any award in club Championship events.

2/ Represent the club in an Open or team race.

3/ Establish a track or road club record, or take a special trophy.

4/ Take a club time trial standard medal.

5/ Vote at the club AGM, or be elected as a committee member.

d) Members who have served the Club long and meritoriously may be granted

Honorary Life Membership, at any Annual General Meeting of the Club. A Certificate to this effect shall be presented to the members.

e) Applications for Life Membership at a rate of five times the Senior annual subscription may be made by members after 10 years' consecutive membership.

4. The income and property of the Club shall be used solely to achieve the objective of the Club and shall not be paid or transferred to any member of the Club by way of bonus, dividend or profit.

5. There shall be an Annual General Meeting in November each year the agenda for which shall be distributed to members at least two weeks prior to the meeting. Only those propositions appearing on the agenda may be voted on, except at the discretion of the Chair. Nominations for official positions should be submitted to the General Secretary for inclusion on the agenda.

6. The affairs of the Club and all matters of business shall be managed by a Committee comprising Chair, officers and members, all of whom shall be elected at the AGM. The President shall be elected at the AGM, but may serve for a period of five years from date of election, before becoming due for re-election.

7. Only First Claim members shall be elected to hold office in any official capacity in the Club.

8. An Auditor shall be elected to audit the accounts for the current year.

9. The Committee shall meet once a month or more often if necessary for the transaction of Club business. In the case of equality of votes the Chair shall have the casting vote. Any member being absent from three consecutive monthly meetings may cease to be a member at the Committee's discretion. The Committee may elect another member to fill the vacancy.

10. A General Meeting of members may be called at any time by the Committee or at the request of any twelve members of the Club given in writing to the General Secretary. Such a meeting shall be announced by 10 days' notice given by the General Secretary to every member of the Club. The quorum for general meetings is five members.

11. Complaints and suggestions should be made in writing to the General Secretary who shall lay same before the Committee at the next meeting.

12. Club property must be returned to the General Secretary immediately on termination of membership.

13. All questions as to the interpretation of Constitution and matters not provided for in the constitution shall be left to the discretion of the Committee.

14. No alteration of the Constitution may be made except at a General Meeting.

15. Upon dissolution of the Club any property or any other assets remaining after payment of debts and liabilities shall be distributed amongst the Governing Bodies to which the Club is affiliated. The assets shall not be distributed among its members.

OPEN AND CLUB RACES AND PERFORMANCES

NOTES:

a) A Junior remains eligible to compete as a Junior until 31st December of the year of his/her eighteenth birthday. Similarly a Youth remains eligible until 31st December of the year of their 16th birthday [for cyclocross age categories see British Cycling website].

b) The Regulations of Cycling Time Trials, and the Rules of British Cycling shall be strictly adhered to.

1. The entry fee for all Club events shall be at the discretion of the Committee. These can be found on the club's website, under events.
2. No entry shall be accepted unless the entrant holds proof of membership (membership card).
3. The Committee reserve the right to refuse any member's entry for reasons that seem to them good and sufficient.
4. Should there be any error in running any event the result may be declared void at the Committee's discretion.
5. Only First Claim members are eligible to win trophies and championships.
6. All medals won by members in Club events, Club B.A.R. competitions, Standard rides, and for Club Records will be of an Oxonian C.C. design (at a cost approved by the Committee).

CLUB TIME TRIAL COMPETITIONS

Front and rear lights must be used in ALL time trials.

NO LIGHT NO RIDE

7.a) The Senior B.A.R. shall be decided over 50, 100 miles and 12 hours, in Club and Open events.

1st: P Chaundry Memorial Shield plus gilt medal, 2nd: Silver medal, 3rd: Bronze medal

b) The Vets B.A.R. shall be decided on Standard time/distance for any V.T.T.A. events or Club events, over 25, 50, 100 miles and 12 hours.

Saxon Trophy

c) The Short Distance B.A.R. Competition shall be decided over 10, 25 and 50 miles. Two club events at 10 and 25 mls, to be chosen by the committee, and any open 50.

See Events list, and website for specified events.

Burden/Stone Cup

d) The Junior B.A.R. shall be decided over 10 and 25 miles in Club and Open events.

Medal or Plaque

e) The Youth Competitions (Boys and Girls) shall be decided on the average of the two fastest 10 mile rides of the season, in Club and Open events.

Girls/Boys: Youth Cup plus Plaque

f) The Women's B.A.R. shall be decided over 10, 25 and 50 miles in Club and Open events.

Shield + medal or Plaque

g) The Women's Evening "10s" Competition, introduced in 1999, will be decided on points gained in the Club evening 10s (scoring as per Burnceaster Cup).

Medal or Plaque

h) The Time Trial League Rules. Only 1st claim members from the nominated clubs are eligible for this competition.

Division 1 riders with a 10 time of	23:00 or less
Division 2 riders with a 10 time of	23:00 to 24:30
Division 3 riders with a 10 time of	24.30 to 26.30
Division 4 riders with a 10 time of	26:30 or more
Road Bike league	na

Points are awarded on the basis of 15 points for 1st in each division, down to 2 points for 14th and then 1 point for all finishers.

A rider's category is based on their fastest time from the previous season and comparison to other riders in league events. New and members not posted a 10 time will be assessed on their first few rides and placed accordingly with relevant points.

Riders remain in their divisions all season, and are promoted or relegated at the end of the year for the following season.

Points will be awarded to all solo riders at all Oxonian CC Open, and Club time trial events, except 2-up time trials and the Leiden Plaque.

Points for marshalling

20 points will be awarded for each of three nominated dates, one of which must be on a fast course. If a date is subsequently inconvenient, please arrange a stand-in and let the organiser know. No points are awarded if riding the event as well (e.g., pushing off and riding last person) Only nominated duties will qualify. If three marshalling duties are not carried out, the member will be excluded from the competition.

There is an award for highest placed Oxonian in each Division

Claims

Claims for all trophies including the Steve Hawkes Trophy, B.A.R. events, 100 miles and 12 Hours Competitions should be submitted to a Committee member by 31st October. Claims for competitions which include cyclocross should be made if possible by 31st December.

CLUB RECORDS

8. a) Seven days' clear notice in writing is required of any special attempt on Club Records.
- b) Claims on Club Records set up in Club events must be made in writing within 28 days of the date of the performance.
- c) Claims on Club Records set up in Open events must be made in writing within 28 days from the date of receiving the result sheet.
- d) An Oxonian Gilt Medal shall be awarded to the member equalling or breaking the existing Standard thereby establishing a Club Record. On the establishment of a record an Oxonian Gilt Medal shall then be awarded to any member lowering the Record subject only to the Record being accepted by the Committee.
- e) Claims for Club Records by Second claim members will not be accepted.
- f) Team records:-

Record claims for teams of 3 solo riders in: Open, Semi-open or Association events, at 10 miles, 25 miles, 30 miles, 50 miles, 100 miles, 12 hours and 24 hours, events must be made in writing to the Committee within 28 days from the date of receiving the result sheet.

Club Track Records

9. a) In a Standing Start Record attempt no push is allowed and the rider must start inside the sprinter's line. In Flying Start Record attempts the rider must complete the preliminary wind-up lap inside the sprinter's line. In the event of a Record being attacked during a competition ride an official observer must be present to ensure that the rider does not receive a push start (e.g. 4,000 metres, 1,000 metres time trial, and one mile standing start). A written statement to this effect should be obtained by the rider from the observer and should accompany his/her claim to the Record.

b) The rider must be timed by an approved British Cycling Timekeeper, and if necessary any fees due to him / her under British Cycling Rules must be paid by the rider attacking the Record.

c) Claims on Club Track Records must be made in writing, to the committee, not more than 28 days after the attempt.

1955	R. Foxley	440 yds Flying Start	26.8 secs
Standard set		440 yds Standing Start	30.2 secs
1952	N. Burnard	880 yds Flying Start	58.6 secs
1955	R. Foxley	1000 metres St. Start	1m 18.2 secs
Standard set		1 mile Standing Start	2m 12.0 secs
1956	M. Bowen	4000 metres St. Start	5m 30.8 secs
-	M. Bowen	4000 metres St. Start	5m 22.0 secs
1996 National Tandem Record	G. Booker + D. Brooks	500 metres St. Start	37.06 secs

RULES GOVERNING STANDARD TIME RIDES

10.a) Awards as specified will be granted by the Committee to members completing distances within the times fixed, providing notice of the attempt is given to the Time Trial Secretary before the start of the event.

b) Any member having gained a Standard Time Award for any one distance shall in all subsequent events at the same distance attempt the next higher Standard Time Award. On each Standard Time being re-framed further attempts may be made.

c) Except when the timing is done by the Club's Official Timekeeper members must forward the results sheets of the promoting club to the Club Time Trial Secretary as proof of their times, otherwise no Standard Award will be made.

d) No member when riding as a 1st Claim member of another club shall be eligible to ride for an Oxonian CC Standard in any event, Club or Open.

CLUB STANDARDS

Single Bicycle (Men)	Silver	Bronze	Certificate
	h m s	h m s	h m s
10 miles	24-15	25-30	27-15
25"	1-02-00	1-05-00	1-07-00
30"	1-14-00	1-18-00	1-22-00
50"	2-07-00	2-13-00	2-19-00
100"	4-25-00	4-40-00	4-50-00
12 hours	240 miles	225 miles	210 miles
24"	400 miles	375 miles	<i>Any finisher</i>

Cheltenham/Back	3-18-00	3-28-00	3-42-15
Henley/back	1-35-00	1-40-00	1-46-00
Single Tricycle	Silver	Bronze	Certificate
(Men)	h. m. s.	h. m. s.	h. m. s.
10 miles	28-15	29-45	31-45
25 "	1-11-00	1-14-00	1-19-00
30 "	1-27-00	1-31-00	1-37-00
50 "	2-27-00	2-34-00	2-45-00
100 "	5-20-00	5-35-00	6-00-00
12 hours	212 miles	202 miles	188 miles
24 "	388 miles	370 miles	<i>Any finisher</i>
Cheltenham/back	4-11-00	4-25-00	4-39-00
Henley/back	1-46-00	1-52-00	1-59-00
Tandem			
10 miles	23-00	24-00	25-00
25 "	57-00	1-00-00	1-03-00
30 "	1-12-00	1-14-00	1-17-00
50 "	2-00-00	2-04-00	2-08-00
100 "	4-15-00	4-30-00	4-45-00
12 hours	240 miles	225 miles	210 miles
24 "	400 miles	375 miles	<i>Any finisher</i>
Cheltenham/back	3-16-00	3-25-30	3-39-45
Henley/back	1-29-00	1-34-00	1-39-00
Single Bicycle (Women)			
10 miles	27-45	29-15	31-15
15 "	42-00	44-00	47-00
25 "	1-11-00	1-14-30	1-17-00
30 "	1-25-00	1-29-30	1-34-00
50 "	2-26-00	2-33-00	2-40-00
100 "	5-05-00	5-20-00	5-35-00
12 hours	210 miles	195 miles	<i>Any finisher</i>
Cheltenham/back	30-40-00	3-51-15	4-08-30
Henley/back	1-46-00	1-51-00	1-57-00
Single Bicycle	(Juvenile Girls)		
10 miles	32-00	34-00	36-00
Single Bicycle	(Juvenile Boys)		
10 miles	26-00	30-00	32-00

CLUB TROPHIES

TOM PEARCE MEMORIAL TROPHY

Open "10"

Subscribed for by members, friends and work colleagues in 1980 in memory of a popular and valued Club member. Awarded annually to the winner of the Open 10 Time Trial.

FREDDIE GREEN MEMORIAL TROPHY

Open "25"

Subscribed for Club members in 1945 in memory of Freddie Green and other members who laid down their lives in the Second World War.

RAVENS BOWL

Open "50"

This trophy was presented to the Club in 1952 by the Ravens CC when they amalgamated with the Oxonian CC, for our first Open "50" in that Jubilee year, and thereafter annually. In 1957 R. Jowers broke the Competition Record in this event.

LEIDEN PLAQUE

Inter-Club "25"

Presented by the Swift Cycling Club in 1951 to commemorate the annual exchange visit between Oxford and Leiden cyclists. It is competed for annually by Oxonian, Oxford City, Banbury Star, Mickey Cranks, Cowley Condors and Didcot Phoenix in a designated inter-club "25", the best team of four on handicap to count.

BROADRIBB CUB

Club "25" Champion

Presented by Messrs Broadribb Ltd in 1948 for annual competition in the Club 25 mile championship time trial.

LEWIS FIELD CUP

Junior "25" Champion

Subscribed for by members of the Club in memory of Lewis Field (founder-member and ex-President) in 1959 for the fastest Junior in the Club race as above.

BAYLISS CUP

Handicap Club "25"

Presented in 1928 by T.C. Bayliss, ex-Vice-President. Awarded to the fastest rider on handicap in the Club 25 mile handicap time trial.

FALCK SHIELD

50 miles Club T.T.

"Freddie" Falck (member 1934-1985, Hon. Life Member 1950-1985, President 1954-1985) presented this oak shield in 1948 and it is awarded to the fastest rider in the Club 50 mile time trial.

JOHN BULL TROPHY

Club "100" champion

Presented by the Leicester Rubber Co. Ltd., in 1928. For the first ten years it was competed for in a 50 mile Relay. Now awarded to rider with the fastest 100ml time.

FALCK CUP**Club 12 hour champion**

W. Falck, father of ex-President "Freddie" Falck, presented this cup in 1935 for annual competition. Awarded to the rider covering most miles in a 12hr event.

GILES SHIELD**Oxford/Henley/Oxford**

Donated in 1989 by Giles Cycles, Carterton, Oxon, to the winner of the Oxford to Henley and back event.

BILL MORRIS MEM. TROPHY**Club "Hilly" Champion**

Purchased in 1998 by his family and cycling friends, to commemorate 65 years of loyalty to the Club, from December 1931 to January 1997. Now awarded to the rider with the fastest aggregate time in the two annual Brill Hilly Club events.

K.B. MAY CUP**Hill Climb Trophy**

Originally won by K.B. May in a roller contest in 1937 and presented to the Club in 1950. Awarded to the fastest member in the Club hill climb.

BURNCEASTER CUP**Evening "10" points**

In 1951 the Executive Committee of the Bicester August Monday Carnival and Sports Meeting presented the Club with this cup, to be competed for in the Grass Track Championship. Changed in 1980 to Points Award; calculated on position amongst Oxonian 1st claim riders, e.g., if 18 riders, fastest 18 points, to slowest 1 point - a rider's best eight rides in the club's evening 10 mile events to count.

SIR WALTER GRAY CUP**Five events**

This cup was originally presented to the Oxford Wheelers CC in 1908 by Sir Walter Gray (Mayor of Oxford), for competition in a 50 mile road race. In 1927 it was given to the D.V.F.B., and in 1990 transferred to our Club. The cup is now awarded to the member gaining the highest number of points in five events: one from two in each of three categories; 10 mile TT, 25 mile TT, Hilly TT/Hill Climb; and two from four Cyclocross events. The committee will nominate events in each category. Points are awarded based on finishing position amongst Oxonian 1st claim riders in the event (20 for first place down to one for 20th place). For cyclocross, riders are first ranked using "position within division" (see p16), and then points are awarded as for other events. If no rider completes five nominated events, it may be awarded, at the committee's discretion, to the highest placed rider based on four events.

PETER CHAUNDY MEM. SHIELD**Senior B.A.R.**

A shield of oak and silver presented by J.R. Chaundy in 1959 in memory of his nephew F/O G.R.P. Chaundy, DFM, killed in flying operations in 1945. *(50 and 100 miles and 12 hours)*

SAXON TROPHY**Veteran B.A.R.**

(25, 50 and 100 miles and 12 hours)

The Club's first trophy, presented by the Saxon Engineering Co. Ltd., in 1927. Originally for the two mile Grass Track Handicap; then for the Club Grass Track Individual Pursuit. Now awarded to the best BAR result assessed by the VTTA aggregate method.

BURDEN/STONE CUP**Short Distance B.A.R.**

Given in 1930, by club members L. Burden and M. Stone. Awarded to the winner of the annual Oxford/London/Oxford record attempt up to 1968, then awarded for the annual Winchester and back event. Adopted in 1999 as an award for an annual Short Distance B.A.R. competition. Two club events at 10 and 25 mls, to be chosen by the committee, and any open 50.

WOMEN'S BAR SHIELD**Women's B.A.R.**

Awarded for the women's annual B.A.R. Competition over 10, 25 and 50 miles.

STEVE HAWKES TROPHY**Open Events**

Donated by Mick Bowen in memory of Steve Hawkes, an active member of the Club for 35 years. Awarded to the rider who completes the highest number of Open events during the year (1st November – 31st October). In the event of two or more riders riding the same number of Opens, the rider with the highest total mileage will receive the award.

CIS MORRIS CUP**On Merit**

Donated to the Club by Cis Morris in 1995, originally awarded to the winner of a women's 'Home Trainer' contest at an Oxford Ideal Home Exhibition in the mid-thirties, and now awarded for the most meritorious achievement each year by an Oxonian woman member - to be decided by the Committee.

YOUTH TROPHY**Two "10"s - mph**

Presented in 1985 by the widow of ex-member Dick Veary, a prominent rider in the pre- and post-war years. Awarded annually to the youth with the best average mph in two 10s.

ROAD RACE CHAMPIONSHIP TROPHY**Points**

Presented in 1985 by Mrs. Veary and awarded annually to the member with the highest number of points during the season in the ORRL. If no member qualifies the trophy will be awarded to the highest-placed member in the any Vet, Senior, Junior or Youth Road Race championship.

GILBERT FITCHETT TROPHY**Votes at AGM**

Donated in 1971 by founder-member Gilbert Fitchett, this trophy has been selected for annual award to the member receiving the most votes at the AGM for having supported the club during the year.

GEOFF WALKER TROPHY**Race position**

Presented in 2001 by the Walker family in memory of Geoff Walker, a dedicated member for 55 years and the originator of the Oxonian cyclocross promotions. Awarded to the highest placed rider in a cyclocross event nominated by the committee, based on "position within division". The committee will nominate an event that will allow the greatest level of participation from Oxonian riders.

SENIOR CYCLO CROSS TROPHY**Points**

Awarded to the senior rider gaining the highest number of points in any two events from four nominated by the committee. Points are awarded based on finishing position amongst 1st claim Oxonian riders in the event (20 for first place down to one for 20th place).

VETERAN CYCLO-CROSS CUP**Points**

Presented in 1983 to Oxonian CC by Farnham RC in recognition of 3 consecutive team wins in their annual Open 25 mile Time Trial. Now competed for by veterans in two events from four, as senior trophy.

JUNIOR CYCLO-CROSS CUP**Points**

Donated in 1992 by Bill and Cis Morris for annual competition by Junior members on a points basis in two events, as for Veterans.

YOUTH CYCLO-CROSS CUP**Points**

Purchased by the Club in 1994 to be competed for by Youth members on a points basis in two events, as for Veterans.

UNDER 12 CYCLO-CROSS TROPHY**Points**

This trophy was donated in 1993 by Tony Wirdnam - to be held for one year by the Under-12 member who gains the most points in two events, as for Veterans.

ROWELL CUP**Strava miles**

Awarded to the rider with the highest annual mileage recorded on 'Strava'.

ENDURANCE CHAIRING TROPHY**Audax or Sportives**

Awarded annually to the rider who, in the committee's opinion, is the most impressive rider in sportives or audax rides. Based on a consideration of: number of events completed, difficulty, distance covered, and metres climbed.

POSITION WITHIN DIVISION

In order to allow 1st claim Oxonians racing in different divisions within a cyclo-cross event to compete with their counterparts, riders are first ranked based on their finishing position as a proportion of all those competing on the same start (e.g. first Oxonian finishing 10th out of 20 starters beats first one who finishes 9th out 10 starters). Following which points are awarded.

AWARD WINNERS: 2023 season

TOM PEARCE MEM. TROPHY	10 miles Open
Tony Turner (Micky Cranks)/Jo Wilkie (Cheltenham & County)	
FREDDIE GREEN MEM. TROPHY	25 miles Open
Alex Doherty (DRAG2ZERO)/Ann Warren (Oxonian)	
Dan Blake (ZeroBC)/Corrine Clarke (Swindon Wheelers)	
RAVENS BOWL TROPHY	
NA	50 miles Open
LEIDEN PLAQUE	25 mile Team
NA	
BROADRIBB CUP	25miles champion
Alex Donger/Ann Warren	
BAYLISS CUP	Club 25 miles Handicap
Paul Thornton	
FALCK SHIELD	Club 50 miles
Alex Donger/Ann Warren	
JOHN BULL TROPHY	100 miles handicap
NA	
FALCK CUP	12 hours handicap
NA	
GILES SHIELD	Oxford/Henley/Oxford
NA	
BILL MORRIS TROPHY	Hilly Champion
E. McDermott	
K.B. MAY CUP	Hill Climb
Sam Stapleton	
BURNCEASTER CUP	Evening 10s Points
Phil Strongman	
P. CHAUNDY MEM. SHIELD	Senior B.A.R
NA	
SAXON TROPHY	Veterans B.A.R
NA	
BURDEN/STONE CUP	Short distance B.A.R
James Hunt	
WOMENS BAR SHIELD	Womens B.A.R
NA	
STEVE HAWKES TROPHY	Most open events
James Hunt	

WOMEN'S EVENING 10s AWARD	Points
NA	
CIS MORRIS CUP	On Merit
NA	
YOUTH TROPHY	Average Two 10s
NA	
ROAD RACE CUP	Points
NA	
GILBERT FITCHETT TROPHY	Club Support
NA	
CHAINRING TROPHY	Endurance events
NA	
ROWELL CUP	Strava Miles
James Hunt	
SIR WALTER GRAY CUP	Highest points overall
NA	
JUNIOR BAR	10 and 25mph
NA	
MOST IMPROVED RIDER	On merit
NA	
CYCLO CROSS:	
SENIOR CYCLO CROSS TROPHY	
NA	
GEOFF WALKER TROPHY	
NA	
VETERAN CUP	
NA	
JUNIOR CUP	
NA	
YOUTH CUP	
UNDER 12s TROPHY	
NA	
OXFORDSHIRE TT LEAGUE	
Div 1	1st James Hunt
Div 2	1st Matt Robson
Div 3	1st Phil Strongman
Div 4	1st Jeff King
Road bike division	Matt Robson/Zara Hannoun

CLUB TIME TRIAL RECORDS

SOLO BICYCLE (MEN)

10 miles (# = unofficial)		
1928	C. Inns	# 27.03
1929	C. Inns	# 26.18
1934	D. Towl	# 25.50
1950	N. Burnard	# 24.37
1978	M. Bowen (V)	21.48
1980	I. Sanderson	21.45
1981	R. Miles	21.18
1982	N. Oakley	21.12
1982	I. Sanderson	20.29
1995	I. Sanderson	20.26
2013	M. Rowley (V)	20.22
2014	M. Rowley (V)	20.18
2015	M. Rowley (V)	20.03
2015	G. Tillson	19.58
2016	M. Rose (V)	19.20
25 miles		
1928	L. Burden	1.11.16
1929	C. Inns	1.07.12
1932	C. Inns	1.06.55
1934	R. Veary	1.05.17
1948	J. Tipping	1.02.18
1949	B. Thornton (Jnr)	1.02.08
1950	B. Thornton (Jnr)	1.01.58
1950	B. Thornton (Jnr)	1.00.23
1951	B. Thornton	1.00.21
1951	N. Burnard *	59.50
<i>* First rider in Oxford area under the hour</i>		
1953	M. Sommerlad	58.37
1954	M. Allen	58.32
1957	M. Bowen	57.58
1958	M. Bowen	57.52
1960	M. Bowen	57.14
1960	M. Bowen	57.09
1960	M. Bowen	57.01
1960	M. Bowen	56.08
1970	M. Bowen	56.05
1976	M. Bowen (V)	56.02
1976	M. Bowen (V)	54.37
1977	M. Bowen (V)	53.50
1984	M. Bowen (V)	53.22
2013	M. Rose	53.21
2013	M. Rowley (V)	53.12
2013	M. Rose	52.09
2014	M. Rowley (V)	51.31
2016	M. Rose (V)	50.53
2018	M. Rose (V)	49.23

30 miles

1948	F. Mumford	1.16.54
1949	F. Mumford	1.15.32
1950	B. Thornton (Jnr)	1.13.03
1955	M. Allen	1.11.17
1961	M. Bowen	1.09.11
1966	M. Bowen	1.07.52
1993	J. Baldwin	1.06.27
2013	M. Rose	1.04.39
2017	M. Rose (V)	1.02.22

50 miles

1929	C. Inns	2.22.15
1933	A. Backhurst	2.21.06
1934	D. Towl	2.18.05
1942	C. Cobb	2.14.40
1945	F. Carter	2.11.10
1950	N. Davies	2.10.36
1950	B. Thornton (Jnr)	2.10.32
1950	F. Mumford	2.09.43
1951	B. Thornton	2.09.42
1951	B. Thornton	2.07.35
1951	B. Thornton	2.05.07
1952	B. Thornton	2.04.50
1952	B. Thornton	2.02.43
1955	M. Allen	2.01.44
1959	M. Bowen	2.00.22
1960	M. Bowen *	1.58.40
<i>*First rider in Oxford area under 2 hours</i>		
1968	M. Bowen	1.57.12
1979	M. Bowen (V)	1.57.02
1979	P. Gilbert	1.56.44
1981	M. Bowen (V)	1.54.12
1982	N. Oakley	1.51.57
1982	I. Sanderson	1.51.48
1987	N. Gardiner	1.50.45
2014	M. Rowley (V)	1.48.46
2015	M. Rowley (V)	1.47.55
2016	M. Rowley (V)	1.46.08

100 miles

1938	C. Cobb	4.45.44
1951	F. Mumford	4.44.29
1951	G. Redman	4.31.24
1958	M. Bowen	4.22.27
1959	B. Thornton	4.15.40
1961	P. Harris	4.06.49
2019	M. Rose	3.51.53

12 hours

		miles
1931	L. Burden	204.50
1934	R. Veary	211.00
1938	C. Murray	228.12
1952	G. Redman	235.45
1952	F. Mumford	242.12
1953	G. Redman	242.80
1959	B. Thornton	250.82
1971	G. Olive	254.98
1973	G. Olive	255.51
1982	N. Oakley	269.27
1987	W. Millatt	230.43
2019	M. Robson	271.22

24 hours

		miles
1951	G. Redman	419.35
1952	G. Redman	439.64
1958	D. Free	447.63
1971	G. Olive	461.99
1975	G. Olive (V)	463.75

Oxford/London/Oxford

1929	C. Inns (unofficial)	5.55.23
1930	L. Burden	5.50.29
1931	W. Bradshaw	5.49.53
1932	E. Silvester	5.35.21
1937	C. Bowerman	5.26.20
1938	A. Smith aged 18	5.19.27
1951	F. Mumford	5.04.19
1952	F. Mumford	5.01.17
1953	F. Mumford	4.57.35
1968	M. Bowen	4.51.04

Oxford/Winchester/Oxford

1962	M. Bowen	4.39.20
1986	S. Gregory	4.24.10

Oxford/Cheltenham/Oxford

1952	F. Mumford	3.48.57
1955	D. Free	3.48.43
1956	C. Brown	3.46.06
1958	M. Bowen	3.43.53
1961	C. Wood	3.38.05
1968	M. Bowen	3.35.53
1981	S. Hawkes (V)	5.33.30
1986	S. Gregory	3.31.03

1986	N. Gardiner (Jnr)	3.27.43
<i>Standard set for shorter course in 1999</i>		
		3.18.00

2004	R. Pettinger	3:17:41
------	--------------	---------

Oxford/Henley/Oxford

1987	N. Gardiner	1.45.59
<i>Standard set for shorter course in 1999</i>		
		1.35.00
2013	M. Rose	1.33.06

SOLO BICYCLE (JUNIOR MALE)**10 miles**

1964	R. Gould	24.20
1964	P. Reynolds	23.50
1979	I. Wilkinson	23.29
1980	M. Wilkinson	23.15
1980	M. Wilkinson	22.54
1981	I. Wilkinson	22.29
1984	S. Drewett	22.22
1985	N. Gardiner	22.08
1986	N. Gardiner	21.59
1986	N. Gardiner	21.04
1994	K. Allan	20.54
2019	J. Lloyd	19.40

25 miles

1949	B. Thornton	1.02.08
1950	B. Thornton	1.01.58
1950	B. Thornton	1.00.23
1980	M. Wilkinson	1.00.16
1980	I. Wilkinson	1.00.15
1980	M. Wilkinson	59.16
1981	I. Wilkinson	58.25
1984	S. Drewett	57.49
1985	N. Gardiner	56.14
1986	N. Gardiner	54.31
1992	C. Pritchard (Youth)	53.41

SOLO BICYCLE (JUNIOR MALE)**30 miles**

1950	B. Thornton	1.13.03
1981	I. Wilkinson	1.12.44
1982	A. Nash	1.12.00
1986	N. Gardiner	1.09.08

50 miles

1950	B. Thornton	2.10.32
1976	A. Olive	2.09.09
1976	A. Olive	2.07.35
1982	A. Nash	2.05.07
1984	S. Drewett	2.00.28

SOLO BICYCLE (YOUTH BOYS)**10 miles**

1984	N. Gardiner	23.22
1991	C. Pritchard	23.02
1992	C. Pritchard	22.52
1992	C. Pritchard	21.24

SOLO BICYCLE (WOMEN)**10 miles**

1954	J. Baston	27.08
1980	S. Morgan	27.04
1981	I. Seacole	26.38
1985	W. Millatt	25.48
1985	W. Millatt	25.18
1985	W. Millatt	24.42
1986	W. Millatt	24.24
1986	W. Millatt	23.36
1993	F. Davidson	23.32
1997	F. Davidson	23.21
1999	F. Davidson	23.05
2022	A. Warren	22:41

15 miles

1955	R. Hodgson	40.51
1985	W. Millatt	39.30
1994	F. Davidson	38.59
2017	A. Woodcock	37.53

25 miles

1955	R. Hodgson	1.10.46
------	------------	---------

1955	R. Hodgson	1.09.49
1955	J. Baston	1.08.25
1985	W. Millatt	1.05.26
1985	W. Millatt	1.03.05
1985	W. Millatt	1.00.56
1987	W. Millatt	1.00.29
1994	F. Davidson	58.46

30 miles

1980	S. Morgan	1.27.00
1982	I. Seacole	1.21.31
1985	W. Millatt	1.18.14
1986	W. Millatt	1.17.39
1986	W. Millatt	1.14.56

50 miles

1985	W. Millatt	2.17.49
1985	W. Millatt	2.15.53
1985	W. Millatt	2.13.07
1986	W. Millatt	2.11.32
1986	W. Millatt	2.10.18
1987	W. Millatt	2.07.58
1994	F. Davidson	2.07.52
1994	F. Davidson	2.07.50
1995	F. Davidson	2.06.23
1996	B. Allen	2.04.23
1996	B. Allen	2.04.01
1997	F. Davidson	2.02.19

100 miles

1985	W. Millatt	4.40.51
1987	W. Millatt	4.32.44
1995	F. Davidson	4.32.19

12 hours

1987	W. Millatt	230.43 miles
------	------------	--------------

Oxford/Winchester/Oxford

1986	W. Millatt	5.05.26
1988	W. Millatt	5.04.21

Oxford/Cheltenham/Oxford

1986	W. Millatt	3.50.59
Standard set for shorter course in		
1999		3.40.00

Oxford/Henley/Oxford

1992	W. Millatt	2.09.40
1993	F. Davidson	2.02.18
<i>Standard set for shorter course in</i>		
1999		1.50.00

SOLO BICYCLE (JUNIOR WOMEN)

10 miles	Standard set	28.00
25 miles	Standard set	1.15.00
30 miles	Standard set	1.32.00
50 miles	Standard set	2.45.00

SOLO BICYCLE (YOUTH GIRLS)

10 miles	<i>Standard set</i>	30.00
2005	E. Yeatman	29.29
2013	N. Reddy	28.50

SOLO TRICYCLE (MEN)**10 miles**

1980	S. Hawkes (V)	26.50
1981	P. Roberts	26.44
1982	S. Hawkes (V)	26.39
1987	S. Avery	26.29
1987	S. Avery	26.18
1988	S. Avery	26.00
1988	A. Hobbs (V)	25.57
1988	S. Avery	25.34
1988	A. Hobbs (V)	25.21
1989	S. Avery	25.09
1989	S. Hawkes (V)	25.03
1989	S. Hawkes (V)	24.17
1999	G. Booker (V)	23.45
2000	G. Booker (V)	23.41
2001	G. Booker (V)	23.08
2001	G. Booker (V)	22:57
2003	G. Booker (V)	22:39

25 miles

1965	J. Cole	1.07.39
1975	S. Hawkes	1.06.29
1989	S. Avery	1.04.19
1998	G. Booker (V)	1.04.12
1999	G. Booker (V)	1.01.06
2000	G. Booker (V)	59.09
2000	G. Booker (V)	58.54
2001	G. Booker (V)	58.45

30 miles

1983	S. Hawkes (V)	1.21.55
1989	S. Hawkes (V)	1.21.04
1999	G. Booker (V)	1.18.22
2000	G. Booker (V)	1.15.27

50 miles

1981	S. Hawkes (V)	2.19.13
1989	S. Hawkes (V)	2.15.26
1998	J. Beard	2.13.14
1998	G. Booker (V)	2.09.06
2001	G. Booker (V)	2.06.58
2001	G. Booker (V)	2.04.12

100 miles

1972	S. Hawkes	5.07.10
1976	S. Hawkes	5.05.52
1980	S. Hawkes (V)	5.03.13
1981	S. Hawkes (V)	5.02.03
1989	S. Hawkes (V)	5.01.28
1992	S. Hawkes (V)	5.00.03
1998	G. Booker (V)	4.56.08
2000	G. Booker (V)	4.30.16

12 hours

		miles
1973	S. Hawkes	219.54
1999	G. Booker (V)	227.06
2000	G. Booker (V)	236.14

24 hours

		miles
Standard set		400.00

Oxford/Winchester/Oxford

1981	S. Hawkes (V)	5.33.30
2001	G. Booker (V)	4:56:08

Oxford/Cheltenham/Oxford

1985	S. Hawkes (V)	4.24.20
<i>Standard set for shorter course in</i>		
1999		4.11.00
1999	G. Booker (V)	3.32.05

Oxford/Henley/Oxford

1997	G. Booker (V)	1.58.27
<i>Standard set for shorter course in 1999</i>		
1999	G. Booker (V)	1.44.32

TANDEM BICYCLE (MEN)

10 miles

1982	A. Deadman	P. Roberts	21.00
1982	A. Deadman	M. Wilkinson	20.34
1982	A. Deadman	M. Wilkinson	20.25
1982	A. Deadman	M. Wilkinson	19.35
1986	A. Deadman	G. Massingham	19.14

25 miles

1982	A. Deadman	M. Wilkinson	51.24
1985	A. Deadman	G. Massingham	51.17
1996	G. Booker	D. Brooks	49.56

30 miles

1951	R. Jenkins	F. Carter	1.09.03
1982	A. Deadman	P. Roberts	1.07.58
1983	A. Deadman	M. Wilkinson	1.01.57

50 miles

1937	C. Cobb	C. Bowerman	1.59.45
1952	B. Thornton	R. Jenkins	1.56.56
1982	A. Deadman	P. Roberts	1.54.36
1983	A. Deadman	V. Prior	1.52.20
1983	A. Deadman	M. Wilkinson	1.52.06
1984	A. Deadman	S. Drewett	1.51.07
1998	G. Booker	D. Brooks	1.50.46

100 miles Standard set 3.53.02

12 hours Standard set 255.75 miles

24 hours Standard set 463.75 miles

Oxford/Winchester/Oxford

Standard set 4.39.20

Oxford/Cheltenham/Oxford

1983 A. Deadman/V. Prior 3.25.33

1999 *Standard set for shorter course* 3.16.00

Oxford/Cheltenham/Oxford

1983 A. Deadman/V. Prior 3.25.33

1999 *Standard set for shorter course* 3.16.00

2000 G. Booker/P. Smith 3.10.10

Oxford/Henley/Oxford

1996 G. Booker/D. Brooks 1.39.09

1999 *Standard set for shorter course* 1.29.00

TEAM RECORDS

Teams of 3 solo riders in: Open, Semi-open or Association events, at 10 miles, 25 miles, 30 miles, 50 miles, 100 miles, 12 and 24 hours.

1992	10m	N.Hobbs	J. Bradwell	C.Pritchard	1-09-32
1999	10m	J.Bourton	C.Edginton	J. Yeatman	1-06-09
2002	10m	P. Granger	C. Edginton	J. Bourton	1-05-28
2005	10m	P. Oliver	V. Walker	J. Bourton	1-04-26
2005	10m	S. Batsford	P. Granger	P. Oliver	1-04-01
2014	10m	T. Yeatman	M. Rowley	G. Tillson	1-02-32
2015	10m	M. Rose	M. Rowley	G. Tillson	1-01-53
1989	25m	A.Nash	P. Collett	P. Greatorex	2-57-42
1992	25m	N.Hobbs	J. Baldwin	C. Pritchard	2-57-30
1995	25m	M. Bowen	V. Prior	M. Thomas	2-54-39
1997	25m	J. Baldwin	J. Yeatman	J. Bradwell	2-53-24
1997	25m	J. Baldwin	J. Yeatman	C. Hart	2-48-52
1999	25m	J. Baldwin	C. Edginton	H. Beauchamp	2-48-08
2015	25m	M. Rose	M. Rowley	G. Tillson	2-46-57
2016	25m	M. Rose	M. Rowley	D Blake	2-54-04
1993	30m	A. Hobbs	J. Baldwin	D. Free	3-52-29
1998	30m	C. Edginton	J. Yeatman	R. Ellis	3-38-14
1988	50m	S. Gregory	G. Cross	P. Collett	6-19-53
1996	50m	G. Booker	J. Savulescu	P. Collett	6-13-19
1999	50m	J. Bourton	C. Edginton	R. Ellis	6-12-44
2001	50m	P. Smith	J. Bourton	C. Edginton	6-02-24
2002	50m	P. Granger	C. Edginton	T. Hermon	5-54-03
2019	50m	D. Blake	M. Rose	G. Winston	5-36-56
1988	100m	S. Gregory	S.Hawkes	W.Millatt	14-29-33
1989	100m	P. Collett	S.Hawkes	C.Marks	14-21-02
1997	100m	P. Collett	F.Davidson	C.Hart	13-23-32
1988	12h	S. Gregory	D. Free	W. Millatt	642.46m

VETERAN AGE RECORDS

Event	Cat	Age	Holder	Time/ Distance	Year	Riding
10 mls	Men	43	M. Rose	19.20	2016	Solo
10 mls	Men	48	M. Rowley	20.01	2016	Solo
10 mls	Men	50	S. Hawkes	21.45	1989	Solo
10 mls	Men	68	D. Jones	22.51	2014	Solo
10 mls	Men	69	P. Abbott	23.21	2003	Solo
10mls	Men	70	G. Booker	25.20	2018	Tri
25 mls	Men	45	M. Rose	49.23	2018	Solo
25 mls	Men	50	M. Rowley	50.00	2018	Solo
25 mls	Men	53	G. Booker	54.21	2001	Solo
25 mls	Men	60	M. Bowen	56.17	1996	Solo
25 mls	Men	69	P. Abbott	59.16	2003	Solo
30 mls	Men	45	M. Rose	1.02.41	2018	Solo
30 mls	Men	52	S. Hawkes	1.10.06	1991	Tri
30 mls	Men	67	P. Abbott	1.14.06	2001	Solo
50 mls	Men	48	M. Rowley	1.46.08	2016	Solo
50 mls	Men	53	G. Booker	2.02.41	2001	Solo
50 mls	Men	63	C. Hart	2.04.17	1999	Solo
50 mls	Men	68	D. Jones	2.09.19	2014	Solo
50 mls	Men	69	G. Booker	2.13.55	2017	Solo
100 ml	Men	46	M. Rose	3.51.53	2019	Solo
100 ml	Men	49	M. Robson	3.56.54	2018	Solo
100 ml	Men	53	S. Hawkes	4.24.37	1992	Solo
12 hr	Men	50	M. Robson	271.22mls	2019	Solo
12 hr	Men	49	M. Robson	252.81mls	2018	Solo
12 hr	Men	52	G. Booker	236.01mls	2000	Tri
12 hr	Men	61	C. Hart	234.06mls	1997	Solo

VETERAN RECORDS, STANDARDISED FOR AGE, GENDER & MACHINE

A Club Record established for the highest plus above Veteran Time Trial Association Standards for a veteran in Open, Semi-open, League or Association events (excluding tandem machines). * denotes where VTTA's revised, post 2012 standards were first established (see <http://www.vtta.org.uk/content/0-standards>).

10 Miles

1988	S. Hawkes	+4.12
1989	S. Hawkes	+5.02
1989	S. Hawkes	+5.48
1993	H. Burdon	+7.39
2001	P. Abbott	+8.32
2002	P. Abbott	+8.35
2003	P. Abbott	+8.39
2014	D. Jones	+8.43
2014	D. Jones	+5.40*
2014	D. Jones	+5.51
2015	M. Rowley	+6.29
2016	M. Rose	+6.53

25 Miles

1989	M. Bowen	+17.15
1994	M. Bowen	+18.55
1995	M. Bowen	+19.41
1996	M. Bowen	+20.20
2001	P. Abbott	+21.34
2003	P. Abbott	+22:37
2018	M. Rose	+17.40*

30 Miles

1989	S. Hawkes	+10.18
1990	S. Hawkes	+13.27
1991	S. Hawkes	+15.14
1998	C. Hart	+17.58
2000	G. Booker	+18.33
2001	P. Abbott	+22.43
2018	M. Rose	+18.13*

50 Miles

1989	S. Hawkes	+25.43
1993	H. Burdon	+35.29
1999	C. Hart	+38.20
2001	G. Booker	+39.38
2014	G. Booker	+45.43
2014	G. Booker	+23.57*
2015	M. Rowley	+30.48
2016	M. Rowley	+33.01

100 Miles

1989	S. Hawkes	+44.20
1992	S. Hawkes	+53.19
1993	H. Burdon	+78.45
2018	M. Robson	+58.40*

12 Hours Miles

1989	S. Hawkes	+17.68
1992	S. Hawkes	+22.39
1993	H. Burdon	+34.86
1997	C. Hart	+41.93
2000	G. Booker	+46.92
2017	M. Robson	+49.95
2017	M. Robson	+59.71*
2019	M. Robson	+68.30

CLUB BEST ALL ROUNDER (BAR) COMPETITIONS

VETERAN BAR

25, 50 & 100 miles & 12 hours (mph, then on Standard, then * denotes post 2012 VTTA aggregate).

1974	G. Olive	22.697	1961	C. Bolitho	21.424
1975	G. Olive	22.966	1962	M. Bowen	23.006
1976	G. Olive	22.537	1963	D. Holmes	22.141
1977	E. Cole	20.863	1964	D. Holmes	22.630
1978	I. Morgan	21.482	1965	D. Holmes	22.667
1979	I. Morgan	21.720	1966	D. Holmes	21.967
1980	S. Hawkes	20.129	1967	D. Holmes	22.597
1981	S. Hawkes	20.163	1968	D. Holmes	22.581
1982	I. Morgan	21.841	1969	J. Cole	22.205
1983	S. Hawkes	21.425	1970	G. Olive	22.566
1984	I. Morgan	22.050	1971	G. Olive	23.066
1985	P. Greatorex	23.963	1972	G. Olive	23.095
1986	P. Greatorex	24.418	1973	G. Olive	22.804
1987	S. Hawkes	21.492	1987	N. Gardiner	1.50.45
1988	S. Hawkes	21.607	1974	G. Olive	22.387
1989	S. Hawkes	+2.962	1975	G. Olive	22.475
1991	D. Free	+2.758	1976	G. Olive	22.044
1992	S. Hawkes	+2.979	1977	I. Morgan	21.007
1993	H. Burdon	+4.166	1978	I. Morgan	21.078
1994	H. Burdon	+4.322	1979	I. Morgan	21.200
1995	S. Hawkes	+3.009	1980	D. Free	20.219
1996	S. Hawkes	+3.146	1981	S. Hawkes	21.279
1997	C. Hart	+4.928	1982	N. Oakley	24.995
1998	C. Hart	+4.515	1983	N. Oakley	24.490
1999	C. Hart	+4.952	1984	S. Hawkes	21.876
2000	G. Booker	+5.311	1985	P. Greatorex	23.004
2001	G. Booker	+5.148	1986	P. Greatorex	23.588
2003	C. Hart	+3.148	1987	Wendy Millatt	21.548
2004	C. Hart	+2.750	1988	S. Gregory	21.641
2007	C. Hart	+2.160	1989	S. Hawkes	20.458
2017	M. Robson	*+38:30	1990	S. Hawkes	20.554
2018	M. Robson	+45.54	1991	P. Collett	22.144
2019	M. Robson	+45.22	1992	S. Hawkes	20.101
			1993	C. Taylor	21.961
			1994	V. Prior	20.871
			1995	S. Hawkes	20.131
			1996	S. Hawkes	19.648
			1997	C. Hart	21.879
			1998	C. Hart	21.658
			1999	G. Booker	22.293
			2000	G. Booker	22.145
			2018	M. Robson	24.050
			2001	G. Booker	21.798
			2003	C. Hart	19.445
			2004	C. Hart	19.170
			2007	C. Hart	18.066
			2011	M. Rowley	22.914
			2012	M. Rowley	22.737
			2017	M. Robson	23:10

SENIOR CLUB BAR

50, & 100 miles and 12 hours (mph)

1950	A. May	21.941
1951	F. Mumford	22.728
1952	B. Thornton	23.467
1953	G. Redman	22.170
1954	D. Free	21.300
1955	D. Free	20.750
1956	B. Hedges	20.900
1957	B. Hedges	20.870
1958	D. Free	21.410
1959	B. Thornton	22.998
1960	C. Bolitho	20.970

SHORT DISTANCE BAR*10, 25 & 50 miles, mph*

1999	J. Bourton	27.247
2000	J. Bourton	27.598
2001	G. Booker	26.798
2002	P. Granger	26.990
2003	P. Granger	26.723
2004	P. Granger	27.147
2005	S. Batsford	27.528
2006	P. Oliver	25.217
2007	P. Oliver	26.220
2008	P. Oliver	25.637
2009	M. Rose	24.608
2010	M. Rowley	25.184
2011	M. Rowley	26.013
2012	M. Rose	27.053
2013	M. Rose	28.021
2015	M. Rose	27.367
2016	M Rowley	27.363
2019	M Robson	26.46

JUNIOR BAR*10, 25 and 30 miles, mph*

1951	M. Shakles	22.728
1952	M. Allen	23.960
1954	J. Jones	
1956	D. Tantrum	
1957	D. Tantrum	
1958	C. Wood	22.520
1959	G. Beament	21.520
1960	A. Lidbury	22.218
1961	M. Edminson	22.464
1962	J. Wood	22.900

Junior BAR 1963 onward*10 and 25 miles, mph*

1963	R. Gould	
1964	P. Reynolds	24.932
1965	R. Gould	23.414
1971	R. Newton	22.990
1973	I. Sanderson	22.018
1976	A. Olive	24.812
1981	I. Wilkinson	26.310
1982	A. Nash	
1983	B. Campbell	23.218
1985	S. Drewett	26.385
1985	N. Gardiner	26.891
1986	N. Gardiner	27.998
1987	M. Nixon	25.912
1988	R. Quantrill	26.288
1989	D. Moore	25.831
1990	K. Hickman	25.536

1991	N. Hobbs	26.727
1992	C. Pritchard	27.989
1993	K. Allen	26.034
1994	K. Allen	27.897
1995	S. McGuigan	24.540
1996	S. Shellard	25.189
1997	S. Shellard	25.302
1999	R. Mungall	20.341
2003	J. Walker	21,704
2004	T Yeatman	21.681
2005	T. Yeatman	24.601
2006	T. Yeatman	25.887
2007	T. Yeatman	24.566
2008	R. Yeatman	
2009	J. McRobert	
2014	T. Salter	22.955
2016	M Thornton	24.025
2019	J.Lloyd	28.626

YOUTH BAR*Two 10 miles, mph*

1973	A. Olive	
1975	C. Roberts	20.876
1976	I. Hedges	16.129
1978	M.Wilkinson	
1983	N. Seacole	20.481
1984	N. Gardiner	25.470
1985	D. Williams	25.433
1986	R. Quantrill	24.406
1987	N. Hobbs	22.711
1988	R. Johnson	23.085
1989	M. Heavens	20.140
1990	M. Heavens	23.129
1991	C. Pritchard	25.763
1992	C. Pritchard	27.886
1994	D. Knowles	24.408
1995	B. Norgrove	19.549
1996	B. Norgrove	18.137
1997	B. Norgrove	22.256
2003	M. Quarterman	21.622
2004	T. Yeatman	22.922
2005	T. Yeatman	26.111
2006	T. Yeatman	26.076
2007	R. Yeatman	24.943
2008	R. Yeatman	26.946
2010	L. Hutton	20.070
2011	L. Hutton	23.697
2012	L. Hutton	26.726
2013	N. Reddy	20.466
2014	G. Fitzek	24.166
2015	T. Salter	24.742
2016	M Thornton	25.352
2019	O Thornton	23.079

WOMEN'S BAR*10, 25 and 50 miles, mph*

1975	S. Morgan	20.436
1980	S. Morgan	21.289
1982	I. Seacole	
1983	I. Seacole	20.234
1984	S. Morgan	20.907
1985	W. Millatt	23.815
1986	W. Millatt	24.111
1987	W. Millatt	24.490
1988	W. Millatt	23.473
1989	W. Millatt	23.522
1990	W. Millatt	23.286
1991	W. Millatt	22.054
1992	W. Millatt	23.154
1993	F. Davidson	23.764
1994	F. Davidson	24.539
1995	F. Davidson	24.556
1996	B. Allen	24.478
1997	F. Davidson	25.232
1999	F. Davidson	24.817
2006	I. Anson	21.072
2007	I. Anson	20.477
2012	I. Anson	20.596
2015	E. McDermott	22.746

THE CLUB'S TIME TRIAL COURSES

Full details are available to download from the Club website

Course	Event	Parking/Meeting Point	Map ref	Grid Ref
HCC140	Eynsham 10	Business Park B4449 near Eynsham	164	SP 429088
HCC260	Chesterton 10 (A4095/B430)	Lay-by on B430 just S. of Middleton Stoney	164	SP 534232
H10/181	Witney (by-pass) 10	Barnard Gate, road off A40	164	SP 401105
H10/17r	Southmoor 10	Left A420 at Longworth/Charney Bassett XR, then right at mini roundabout	164	SU 385977
H10/18	Hardwick 10	Standlake Arena	164	SP 387046
U/95/10	Burford 10	Off A361 at turn for Filkins	163	SP 241056
HCC244	Brill Hilly 16	Windmill, near Brill centre	164	SP 652142
HCC262	Charlbury Hilly 19	Charlbury, Spendlove Centre Car Park	164	SP 358198
UC96	Burford 25 (Lechlade/Burford)	Off A361 to Lechlade - at turn for Filkins	163	SP 241056
H25/17	Cumnor Open 25 (on A420)	Check with organiser	164	SP 473011
H50/17	Combined Club + Open 50	Check with organiser	164	SP 473011
HHC031	Court Hill Climb	Letcombe Regis	174	SP 866382

EVENTS PROGRAMME FOR 2024

Notes: the above programme may be subject to change, so check website for any amendments.

**Please ensure you have a front and rear light, in good working order,
fitted to your bike at ALL time trials. NO LIGHT, NO RIDE.**

Date	Course	Area	Distance	Start	Trophy
Sun 26 March	HCC244	Brill	15	10:00am	
Wed 29 March	H10/18	Hardwick	10	6:30pm	
Wed 5 April	U95/10	Burford/Lechlade	10	6:30pm	
Wed 12 April	CC260	Chesterton	10	6:30pm	
Wed 19 April	H10/18	Hardwick	10	6:45pm	
Wed 26 April	U95/10	Burford/Lechlade	10	7:00pm	
Wed 3 May	CC260	Chesterton	10	7:15pm	
Wed 10 May	H10/18	Hardwick	10	7:15pm	
Wed 17 May	U95/10	Burford/Lechlade	10	7:30pm	
Wed 24 May	H10/17R	Southmoor	10	7:30pm	
Wed 31 May	UC96	Burford/Lechlade	25	7:00pm	Sir Walter Gray, Bayliss
Wed 7 June	H10/18	Hardwick	10	7:30pm	
Wed 14 June	CC262	Charlbury	19	7:30pm	Sir Walter Gray
Sun 18 June	HCC282	Henley and back	38	8:00am	
Wed 21 June	H10/17R	Southmoor	10	7:30pm	
Sun 25 June	H25/17	Cumnor	25	7:00am	Open TT, Sir Walter Gray, Burden Stone, Women's BAR
Wed 28 June	HCC244	Brill	15	7:30pm	Bill Morris
Wed 5 July	H10/181	Witney	10	7:30pm	
Sun 9 July	H50/17	Southmoor	50	6:00am	Open TT, Ravens Bowl, Falck Shield
Wed 12 July	CC262	Charlbury	19	7:30pm	
Wed 19 July	H10/18	Hardwick	10	7:30pm	
Wed 26 July	HCC244	Brill	15	7:15pm	Bill Morris
Sun 30 July	H10/17R	Southmoor	10	8:00am	Open TT, Tom Pearce, Sir Walter Gray, Burden Stone, Women's BAR
Wed 2 August	UC96	Burford/Lechlade	25	6:45pm	Burden Stone, Women's BAR
Wed 9 August	H10/18	Hardwick	10	7:15pm	Sir Walter Gray
Wed 16 August	U95/10	Burford/Lechlade	10	7:00pm	
Wed 23 August	H10/18	Hardwick	10	6:45pm	Burden Stone, Women's BAR
Wed 30 August	U95/10	Burford/Lechlade	10	6:30pm	
Sat 9 September	HHC031	Court Hill HC	1	11:00am	May Cup, Sir Walter Gray
Cyclocross		Wessex League			Sir Walter Gray, Geoff Walker, Senior CX (events TBC)

Please see the website for details of how to enter TT events. Please note that entry for Open events must be done via the CTT website, and typically closes 12 days before the event.

CLUB RIDES

The club has regular rides on Saturday mornings. These are informal rides with everyone welcome, but please have mudguards fitted on your bike for winter and wet rides. Destination and pace is dependent on who turns up and the wind direction, however they are social rather than race training rides. Each group will have a ride leader who will decide on the route and pace. We sometimes split up into two or more groups if there are sufficient numbers, with each group taking a different route, sometimes a shorter or easier ride to the coffee stop. Distance is around 50 ml finishing at approximately 1300hrs.

During summer months there are some optional extended distance rides. For these all riders meet at the coffee stop, from where those wishing to do a shorter ride will head back to the start and those opting for a longer ride split off to return to the start mid to late afternoon.

Please check the website/social media for further information and up to date amendments to all club rides.

OXONIAN CYCLING CLUB RIDES - CODE OF CONDUCT

Each rider is responsible for their own safety. Your bike will need to be in a good and safe roadworthy condition. Please carry a spare tube, a pump and some basic tools. A working rear light is advisable during winter months. Don't rely on others.

In winter months, mudguards to be fitted to avoid mud in wet conditions being splashed on to the rider behind. Please be courteous to other road users even if they aren't to you. You are representing the club.

Riders shall ride no more than 2 abreast and shall single out if possible where it will help overtaking traffic, and agree to ride within the group. Communication in a group is always important, so please help others and point out, shout out obstacles, potholes, cars etc. If you are at the front of the group and pull out of a junction please be aware that others might be still waiting.

The club run is not a race and the group will normally stick together, but still feel free to sprint for the odd sign post etc.

Club members should note that individual membership of BRITISH CYCLING gives 3rd Party cover at all times while riding a bicycle.

IMPORTANT DISCLAIMER

You agree to take part in the club's activities entirely at your own risk and without any liability whatever on the part of Oxonian Cycling Club, its officials or members, in respect of loss, injury or damage suffered, however caused.

CYCLOCROSS

Cyclocross is a form of off-road racing done on laps of a parkland circuit that usually includes a mixture of terrain and obstacles, both artificial and natural. Cyclocross racing is very accessible, and local events can be ridden on any bike with no previous experience. Cyclocross is open to all ages, with categories ranging from under 8s through to over 70s.

The traditional cyclocross season runs from September to January, but there are also local series that run on weekday evenings in the summer.

Oxonian is affiliated to Wessex Cyclocross. Club members also race in some Western CX and Central CX league events, as well as the Banjo Cycles (Newbury) and Take 3 Tri (Abingdon) summer series.

We believe that cyclocross is a great way to introduce riders of all ages to the sport of cycling. The races are open to all, from the more serious rider down to the inexperienced novice, who will always find someone of a similar level to ride against, even if you are several laps down! You can ride on any bike and no previous experience is required to join in the fun, although a MTB or 'cross bike with knobbly tyres is best. Junior races are organised in age groups with many prize awards. Why not turn up and give it a try? For more information about cyclocross see our website.

ROAD RACING

Club members compete in the local Oxfordshire Road Race league (ORRL), other British Cycling races, and a number of older members compete in events promoted by the League of Veteran Racing Cyclists (LVRC). The club has a Road Race Championship Trophy that is awarded to the rider accruing the most RR points during a season. If you want to have a go at your first road race or want to get back into the swing of things then contact us and we will direct you to our active racers.

MOUNTAIN BIKING

We are developing our MTB activities during this year, with coaching and regular MTB rides planned for this year. See website and social media for announcements.

CLUB KIT

This is available from Steve Smith 01865 436251 steve.smith@oxoniancc.co.uk

We are in the process of changing our kit supplier to Pro Vision. We are not changing the overall design of the kit. Pro Vision offer the same range and quality of kit as Endura and are competitive with their pricing. We intend to make two versions of kit available to members; a 'standard' kit suitable for social riders and a 'technical' kit suitable for those members who race or who are lucky enough to fit into race style kit! Men and women's kit will be available. Pro Vision will allow one-off orders and this will benefit the club by us not having to hold stock for long periods of time.

We still have a full range of Endura children's kit from age 5 up to age 12.

